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1.1 DEPARTMENT’S GENERAL INFORMATION 

Civilian Secretariat for Police Service

217 Pretorius Street, Van Erkom Building, 7th Floor, Pretoria

Telephone: 012 393 2500

1.2 LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS

AGSA The Auditor General of South Africa

APP Annual Performance Plan

CPF Community Policing Forum

CSF Community Safety Forum

CSPS ACT Civilian Secretariat for Police Service Act

DEVCOM Development Committee

DPCI Directorate for Priority Crime Investigations

DPSA Department of Public Service and Administration

FSD Frontline Service Delivery

HR Human Resources

HRM Human Resource Management

HRD Human Resource Development

IMS Information Management System

ICD Independent Complaints Directorate

ICPC International Centre for the Prevention of Crime

IPID Independent Police Investigative Directorate

JCPS Justice Crime Prevention and Security Cluster

M&E Monitoring and Evaluation 

MCS Modified Cash Standard

MINMEC Ministers and Members of Executive Council

MISS Minimum Information Security Standards

MoU Memorandum of Agreement

MPSA Ministry for Public Service and Administration

NCOP National Council of Provinces

NDP National Development Plan

NRF National Revenue Fund

n.d. No Date

OAG Office of the Accountant-General

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

PMDS Performance Management Development System

PSETA Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

PSIRA Private Security Industry Regulatory Authority

RAG Resource and Allowance Guide

RoC Resolving of Crime

SALGA South African Local Government Association

SAPS South African Police Service 

SASCO South African Standard Classification of Occupations

SASSETA Safety and Security Sector Education and Training Authority

SCM Supply Chain Management

SDIP Service Delivery Improvement Plan 

SMS Senior Management System

WSP Work Skills Plan
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Undoubtedly, the fight against crime remains one of the key challenges, which requires extensive collaboration. Collaboration 

among various stakeholders is one of the critical factors that will contribute to the success of realizing South Africa’s National 

Development Plan (NDP) vision 2030. The NDP highlights building safer communities as a primary objective, and further 

indicates the following as the vision for the country by 2030:

“In 2030, people living in South Africa feel safe at home, at school, and work, and they enjoy a community life free of fear. Women 

walk freely in the streets and children play safely outside. The police service is well-resourced and professional, staffed by highly 

skilled officers who value their work, serve the community, safeguard lives and property without discrimination, protect the 

peaceful against violence, and respect the rights to equality and justice”

With all that said, the Civilian Secretariat for Police Service is expected, among other responsibilities, to exercise civilian 

oversight over the police service and provide strategic advice in respect of the development and implementation of policing 

policies. It is evident that the department must play a central role, in particular, to contribute to the attainment of Vision 2030. 

The department has, during the year under review, put a lot of time and effort to strengthen service delivery by the police 

through the mobilization of different role-players and stakeholders, which included Community Policing Forums (CPFs) and 

Community Safety Forums (CSFs). Also, the department held Izimbizo to promote community safety and conducted several 

workshops regarding the establishment of CSFs in different provinces. This work is necessary to achieve the vision for safer 

communities in South Africa. 

It is worth mentioning that the police have done a remarkable job of combating crime, in particular, political killings and cash-

in-transit crime, which grabbed the attention of many South Africans during the year under review. In July 2018, there were 

an estimated 46 arrests for political killings following the establishment of a new task team. A total of 237 arrests were made 

between April 4, 2018, and November 4, 2018, across the country concerning cash-in-transit robberies. The total number of 

 Foreword by the 
 Minister of Police
GENERAL B H CELE, MP
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cash-in-transit robberies during the same period was 118, as compared with 184 the preceding year, a decrease of 66. Tackling 

this form of crime has necessitated collaborative efforts, which proved to be a considerable success. For example, the formation 

of intervention teams led to, inter alia, the arrests of robbers, recovery of firearms, hijacked vehicles, and rounds of ammunition. 

None of this would have been possible without collaboration among our stakeholders. 

Furthermore, arrests made in connection with femicide and other crimes related to women and children during the year of 

reporting speak volumes of successes. It was challenging for the police to address these crimes as they involved domestic 

violence and because they took place among people who know each other. Despite this, the police were responsible for the 

conviction of a high number of murderers who were found guilty of destroying the lives of their supposed to be partners and 

vulnerable children.

Although a lot of progress has been made during the year under review, we should not dismiss the fact that crime remains a 

challenge in the country and that a range of problems exists in the internal functioning of the SAPS. As stated in the 2016 White 

Paper on Policing, these problems are closely linked to poor discipline, criminality and corruption. The department conducts 

research and develops policies that will set the tone in determining a police service that is operating within the directives as 

outlined in the Constitution and pronouncements made by the President in his State of Nation Address (SoNA). Moreover, the 

role played by the department in exercising civilian oversight over the police service during the 2018/19 financial year will 

continue to be an important driving force for further improvement in the functioning of SAPS and for the ultimate success of 

realizing the NDP vision 2030. 

 

Appreciation and Conclusion

I would like to thank all our stakeholders and the Civilian Secretariat staff for their dedication, commitment, and contribution 

towards building safer communities in South Africa.

________________________

GENERAL B H CELE, MP

MINISTER OF POLICE   

Date: 06/09/2019

________________

GENERAL B H CE
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The overall progress made by the department in the past financial year is indisputable. It indicates that we continue to work toward 

fulfilling our vision. All the successes and progress achieved were as a result of a team effort.

The strategic objectives set out in our 5-year Strategic Plan and Annual Performance Plan represents our determination to strengthen 

service delivery by the police, and the safety and the security of our communities. Collectively, employees within the department 

focused efforts on achieving these objectives in the past year. To highlight efforts taken, the department conducted workshops 

geared towards establishing Community Safety Forums (CSFs) in municipalities and capacity building with particular focus on crime 

prevention in all nine provinces. Also, the department intensified its campaigns on Anti-Crime over the last year. Admittedly, the 

department did not deliver the desired outcome in respect of conducting training for Community Policing Forums (CPFs) due to lack of 

funding. However, despite this shortcoming, the department has made irrefutable progress in overall crime prevention programmes. 

One example of this is that the department held several Izimbizo/public participation programmes to promote community safety in 

various provinces and signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with Aware!org to establish a formal partnership regarding 

the promotion of responsible alcohol trade and consumption in the fight against crime. 

Another highlight for the department is the adoption of the Critical Infrastructure Protection Bill by the Portfolio Committee on 

Police, which was also referred to and passed by Parliament in March 2019, and the submission of the draft Second Hand Goods 

Amendment Bill to the Minister. The finalisation of the DNA Regulations was another important milestone for the department. Work 

on the drafting of the Firearms Control Amendment Bill, Controlled Animals and Animal Produce Bill and Criminal Law (Forensic 

Procedures) Amendment Bill, Criminal Law (Forensic Procedures) Amendment Bill and Protection of Constitutional Democracy 

Against Terrorist and Related Activities Amendment draft Bill was still underway during the period under review. 

The department presented a Single Police Service (SPS) Policy Framework at a workshop arranged for the purpose of strengthening 

the working relationship between SAPS and Metro Police. Further, the SPS Policy Framework was approved by the Minister. The 

 Report of the 
 Accounting Officer
HONOURABLE B H CELE
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purpose of the framework is to outline the parameters for integration, cooperation, and collaboration of the South African Police 

Service, Metro Police Service, and traffic policing where relevant with the aim of improving uniformity, efficiency, and effectiveness 

within the law enforcement value-chain.

For the past year, we continued to play a vital role in exercising oversight over the police by capacitating officials responsible 

for conducting investigations on service delivery complaints against the police. Further efforts include, but are not limited to, 

joint national visits to monitor compliance with the implementation of the Independent Police Investigative Directorate (IPID) 

recommendations by provinces, an analysis of service delivery trends within the Detective Services environment, finalisation of a 

report on the implementation of the School Safety Protocol and police station oversight.

As at 31 March 2019, the department’s vacancy rate was maintained at 6.67% below the set target of 10%. This was achieved 

following the establishment of a Human Resource Committee. The Committee played a critical role in overseeing among other 

things the process of filling vacant funded posts. A total of 7 Human Resource policies were approved and implemented. Also, the 

Human Resource function will continue to implement the necessary measures to ensure that there is strategic alignment within the 

department.  

There is a great need to enhance service delivery by the police in order to ensure the safety and security of our communities. Looking 

ahead, we remain determined to continuously improve our performance in an effort to strengthen service delivery by the police. 

1.5 OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE DEPARTMENT

DEPARTMENTAL RECEIPTS 

The table below provides a breakdown of the sources of revenue and performance for the 2018/19 financial year. 

Table 1: Source of Revenue 

Departmental receipts

2018/2019 2017/2018

Estimate Actual
Amount 

Collected

(Over)/ 
Under 

Collection

Estimate Actual
Amount 

Collected

(Over)/
Under 

Collection

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Sale of goods and services 
other than capital assets

79 68 11 61 62 (1)

Financial transactions in assets 
and liabilities

74 128 (54) 89 64 25

Total 153 196 (43) 150 126 24

The department collected a total amount of R196 000 in revenue for the 2018/19 financial year. This is an increase of R70 000 

over the revenue collected during 2017/18. The under-collection of R11 000 can be attributed to an over-estimation on the 

collection of revenue for parking and commission on insurance and garnishee orders. The over-collection of R52 000 was due 

to a once-off receipt of previous year debt.
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PROGRAMME EXPENDITURE

The table below provides a high-level comparison of 2017/18 versus 20187/19 of the expenditure incurred by the Department 

against appropriated funds. 

Programme Name

2018/2019 2017/2018

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/ 
Under 

Expenditure 

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Administration 54 437 53 072 1 365 52 688 52 010 678

Intersectoral Coordination 
and Strategic Partnerships

24 345 21 976 2 369 23 251 20 945 2 306

Legislation and Policy 
Development

21 392 20 386 1 006 18 898 18 580 318

Civilian Oversight, 
Monitoring and 
Evaluations

31 045 28 430 2 615 29 836 26 810 3 026

Total 131 219 123 864 7 355 124 673 118 345 6 328

The department spent R123,864 million or 94,4% of its allocated budget of R131,219 million in the 2018/19 financial year. This 

is 0,5% lower than the 94,9% spending in the 2017/18 financial year. The underspending in the 2018/19 financial year can 

mainly be attributed to compensation of employees (R5,987 million which is 6,1% of the total compensation budget) due to 

an average vacancy rate of 6,67% or 10 posts. The department only under-spent with R620 000 on goods and services which 

represents 1,9% of the final appropriation of  R31,932 million. Unfortunately, due to a delay in the movement of the department 

to new office accommodation, there was an underspending of R674 000 on purchase of capital assets which represents 40,8% 

of the total capital budget of R1,653 million.

VIREMENTS/ROLLOVER

The accounting officer approved the following virements

Programme Approved by Accounting Officer

Administration 22

Intersectoral Coordination and Strategic Partnerships (71)

Legislation and Policy Development -

Civilian Oversight, Monitoring and Evaluations 49

Total -

Programme and Economic classification Approved by National Treasury

Intersectoral Coordination and Strategic Partnerships

Compensation of Employees (19)

Transfers to Household (Leave Gratuity) 19

Total -
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Reason for the virement 

The Virement from Programme 2: Intersectoral Coordination and Strategic Partnership were mainly to defray overspending on 

Goods and Services in Programme 4: Civilian Oversight, Monitoring and Evaluations and overspending on payment for capital 

assets in Programme 1: Administration.

Virement to utilise an amount of the under-spending in Programme 2: Intersectoral Coordination and Strategic Partnership on 

Compensation of Employees to defray the overspending on Transfers to Household (Leave Gratuity), was approved by National Treasury.

UNAUTHORISED, FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE 

The department did not incur unauthorised, irregular or fruitless and wasteful expenditure during the year under review, 

however, it did make submissions to National Treasury for the condoning of previously incurred irregular expenditure as well 

as a request to Parliament on previously incurred unauthorised expenditure.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

• The department did not conclude any unsolicited bid proposals for the year under review.

• SCM processes and systems are in place to prevent irregular expenditure as the department has not identified any such 

transactions in the past two financial years.

• The only challenges experienced in SCM was a periodical shortage of staff due to vacancies and/or extended leave 

periods and this placed additional workload pressure on the rest of the staff.   

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

• Allegations were made anonymously against senior management of the department after the reporting date. An investigation 

is being conducted by the Public Service Commission into these allegations and is not yet finalised. The Annual Financial 

Statements were approved by the Accounting Officer on 30 May 2019, and by the AGSA and Audit Committee on 22nd July 2019. 

• An estimate of the financial effect of the subsequent events cannot be made.

OTHER MATTERS 

No other material fact or circumstances, which may affect the understanding of the financial state of affairs were identified.

APPRECIATION AND CONCLUSION

We again succeeded in achieving and retaining a clean audit status. I wish to thank the team for demonstrating a continued 

commitment to excellence and for realizing the objectives of the department. My gratitude is further extended to the Minister 

of Police for the support, guidance, and leadership provided. 

________________________

Accounting Officer

Civilian Secretariat for Police Service

Date: 23/08/2019

_________________________________
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1.6 STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF THE   
 ACCURACY OF THE ANNUAL REPORT 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following: 

All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent. 

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as issued by National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the modified cash standard and the relevant 

frameworks and guidelines issued by the National Treasury.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the judgements made in 

this information.  

The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal control that has been designed 

to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human resources 

information and the annual financial statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources information 

and the financial affairs of the department for the financial year ended 31 March 2019.

________________________

Accounting Officer

Civilian Secretariat for Police Service

Date: 23/08/2019

______________________
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1.7 STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

VISION

A transformed and accountable police service that reflects the values of our developmental State.

MISSION

To provide an efficient and effective civilian oversight over the South African Police Service and enhance the role of the Minister 
of Police.

VALUES:

In carrying out its mandate, the Civilian Secretariat for Police Service subscribes to the following set of values:

•   Integrity
•  Transparency
•  Respect
•  Accountability
•  Fairness

1.8 LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

The mandate of the Civilian Secretariat for Police Service is derived from Section 208 of the  Constitution of the RSA,1996 & the 
Civilian Secretariat for Police Service Act, 2011:

The broad mandate of the Civilian Secretariat for Police Service is to:
• Provide the Minister with policy advice and research support.
• Develop departmental policy through qualitative and evidenced-based research.
• Provide civilian oversight of the Police Service through monitoring and evaluating overall police performance.
• Mobilise role-players, stakeholders, and partners outside the department through engagements on crime prevention 

and other policing matters.

1.9 ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

MINISTER OF POLICE
General B H Cele (MP)

DEPUTY MINISTER OF POLICE
Hon. C C Mathale (MP)

SECRETARY FOR POLICE SERVICE
Mr A P Rapea
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1.10 ENTITIES REPORTING TO THE MINISTER

The following entities report to the Minister:

Name of Entity Legislative Mandate Financial Relationship Nature of Operation

Civilian Secretariat for Police 
Service

Civilian Secretariat for Police 
Service Act, 2 of 2011

N/A Provide oversight over the 
performance and conduct 
of the police

South African Police Service SAPS Act Secretariat budget is trans-
ferred through the Vote: 
Police

Investigate crime and refer 
it for prosecution 

Independent Police 
Investigative Directorate

IPID Act 1, of 2011 None Investigate matters into the 
conduct of the police

Private Security Industry 
Regulatory Authority

PSIRA Act None Provide for effective 
regulation of the private 
security industry
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Part B
Performance 
Information 
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2.1  AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES: 

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON VOTE 23: DEPARTMENT OF CIVILIAN 
SECRETARIAT FOR POLICE SERVICE

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Department of Civilian Secretariat for Police Service set out on pages 

63 to 145, which comprise the appropriation statement, the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, the 

statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the year then 

ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Department of 

Civilian Secretariat for Police Service as at 31 March 2019, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then 

ended in accordance with Modified Cash Standard (MCS) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act 

of South Africa, Act No. 1 of 1999 (PFMA). 

Basis for opinion

3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under those 

standards are further described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section 

of this auditor’s report. 

4. I am independent of the department in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the International Ethics Standards 

Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional accountants (IESBA code), parts 1 and 3 of the International Ethics 

Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International 

Independence Standards) and the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my 

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA codes.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matters

6. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Material underspending of the vote by the department 

7. As disclosed in the appropriation statement, the department materially underspent the budget by R1 365 000 on 

programme 1, R2 369 000 on programme 2 and R2 615 000 on programme 4.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements

8. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 

with the MCS and the requirements of the PFMA and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is 
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necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error.

9. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the Department of Civilian 

Secretariat for Police Service’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate governance structure either intends 

to liquidate the department or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

10. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 

are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

11. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the annexure to this 

auditor’s report.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT

Introduction and scope

12. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice 

issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material findings on the reported performance information 

against predetermined objectives for selected programmes presented in the annual performance report. I performed 

procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

13. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the approved performance 

planning documents of the department. I have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the performance 

indicators/measures included in the planning documents. My procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or 

assertions relating to planned performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be included 

as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters. 

14. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance with the criteria 

developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the 

following selected programmes presented in the annual performance report of the department for the year ended 31 

March 2019:

Programmes
Pages in the annual 
performance report

Programme 2 – Intersectoral Coordination and Strategic Partnerships 25 – 27

Programme 3 – Legislation and Policy Development 27 – 28

Programme 4 – Civilian Oversight, Monitoring and Evaluation 28 – 31



18 |  Annual Report 2018/19

15. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was properly presented and 

whether performance was consistent with the approved performance planning documents. I performed further 

procedures to determine whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the 

reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

16. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for these 

programmes.

Other matter

17. I draw attention to the matter below.

Achievement of planned targets 

18. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 21 to 31 for information on the achievement of planned targets for 

the year and explanations provided for the under/over achievement of a number of targets.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION

Introduction and scope

19. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material 

findings on the compliance of the department with specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify 

findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance. 

20. I did not raise material findings on compliance with the specific matters in key legislation set out in the general notice 

issued in terms of the PAA.

OTHER INFORMATION

21. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 

included in the annual report. The other information does not include the financial statements, the auditor’s report and 

those selected programmes presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported in this 

auditor’s report. 

22. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information and compliance with 

legislation do not cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion 

thereon.

23. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the 

other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected programmes presented in 

the annual performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCIES

24. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported performance information and 

compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form of assurance on it. I did not 

identify any significant deficiencies in the internal controls

OTHER REPORTS

25. I draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties that had, or could have, an impact on 

the matters reported in the department’s financial statements, reported performance information, compliance with 

applicable legislation and other related matters. These report did not form part of my opinion on the financial statements 

or my findings on the reported performance information or compliance with legislation.

ONGOING INVESTIGATION

26. There was an investigation conducted by the Public Service Commission (PSC) on allegations relating to HR malpractices 

at the department. The investigation was still ongoing at the date of this report.

Pretoria

31 July 2019
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ANNEXURE – AUDITOR-GENERAL’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT

1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism 

throughout my audit of the financial statements, and the procedures performed on reported performance information 

for selected programmes and on the department’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

Financial statements

2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor’s report, I also: 

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

department’s internal control

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by the Accounting Officer.

• conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in 

the preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 

material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Department 

of Civilian Secretariat for Police Service’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 

statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion on the 

financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information available to me at the date of this auditor’s 

report. However, future events or conditions may cause a department to cease continuing as a going concern

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 

fair presentation.

Communication with those charged with governance

3. I communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit. 

4. I also confirm to the accounting officer that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 

and communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to have a bearing on my 

independence and, where applicable, related safeguards. 



21Annual Report 2018/19  |  

2.2 OVERVIEW OF DEPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE 

SERVICE DELIVERY ENVIRONMENT

Although several service delivery protests took place during the year under review, the service delivery environment for the 

department was stable. The department conducted additional izimbizo/public participation programs in response to the 

increased service delivery protests to promote community safety. Also, the department successfully responded to the high 

demand for CSFs workshops in addition to the planned targets. 

SERVICE DELIVERY IMPROVEMENT PLAN

The department to develop a Service Delivery Improvement Plan in the 2019/2020 financial year. 

ORGANISATIONAL  ENVIRONMENT

The Secretariat has filled 140 of its 150 vacant posts by the end of the year under review, resulting in a vacancy rate of 6.67% 

for the organisation. In terms of the status of the Employment Equity, of the total number of positions filled, there is one (1) 

person with a disability, which translates into 0,74%. In terms of gender differences, 75 out of the total positions filled comprise 

of females, which translates into 56%, while 65 are males, which translates into 44%. 

KEY POLICY DEVELOPMENTS AND LEGISLATIVE CHANGES

Policy developments

The policy framework on the Single Police Service (SPS) was signed off by the Secretary and approved by the Minister on the 

26 March 2019. The purpose of the framework is to outline the parameters for integration, cooperation and collaboration of 

SAPS, MPS, and traffic policing where relevant with the aim of improving uniformity, efficiency and effectiveness within the law 

enforcement value-chain.

Legislative changes

On June 7, 2018, the Constitutional Court unanimously ruled that sections 24 and 28 of the Firearms Control Act 60 of 2000, 

under which gun owners must renew their firearm licenses or forfeit guns for which licenses have expired to the state, are 

constitutional. Significantly, the Constitutional Court noted that gun ownership is not a fundamental right under South Africa’s 

Bill of Rights, rather it is a privilege regulated by the Firearms Control Act (FCA). No person may possess a gun without a valid 

license. 

This judgment was a result of a previous Court ruling in the South African Hunters and Game Conservation Association versus 

the Minister of Police (2017) which ruling declared sections 24 and 28 of the Firearms Control Act to be unconstitutional. The 

Constitutional Court ruling notes that a system of regular gun license renewal brings South Africa’s gun control regime within 

an international legal and political gun control framework. This ruling further provided certainty in the sections dealing with 

the renewal of licenses, which assists with the continued drafting of the amendments of the Firearms Control Act. 

Other Bills that have been identified for processing to Cabinet for publication in the Gazette during this financial year include 

the South African Police Service Amendment Bill, Protection of Constitutional Democracy against Terrorist and Related Activities 

Amendment Bill.
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2.3 STRATEGIC OUTCOME ORIENTATED GOALS 

• A well-advised and supported Minister for a service-delivery oriented police service that is accountable

• Quality, timeous evidence-based strategic research, policy advice and legislative support to the Minister of Police

• Deepened public participation in the fight against crime

• Enhanced accountability and transformation of the South African Police Service Performance Information 

2.4 PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME

PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION

Programme Purpose: Provide strategic leadership, management and support services to the department

Strategic Objective: To enhance corporate governance in ensuring that the Civilian Secretariat achieves its mandate

Programme Expenditure

Programme Name

  2018/19 2017/18

Final
Appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/
Under

Expenditure

Final
Appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/
Under

Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Administration 54 437 53 072 1 365 52 688 52 010 678

Total 54 437 53 072 1 365 52 688 52 010 678
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SUB-PROGRAMME 1.1: DEPARTMENT MANAGEMENT 

Sub-Programme Purpose: Provide administrative management support to the Secretary for Police Service and strategic 

support to the Minister of Police

Strategic Objective: To provide strategic leadership, and overall management of the department

Programme Performance 
Indicators

Baseline 
(Actual 

Achievement) 
2017/18

Actual Performance against 
Target

Deviation 
from planned 

target to 
actual 

achievement 
for 2018/19

Reason for
Deviation

Target 
2018/19

Actual 
2018/19

1.1.1 Number of joint 
consultative Independent 
Police Investigative 
Directorate (IPID)/
Secretariat Forum meetings 
held per year in compliance 
with the Civilian Secretariat 
for Police Service Act, 2011

4 4 3 (1) The Executive Director’s 
contract ended, followed 
by a litigation process 
for reinstatement.  This 
impacted on the meet-
ing scheduled for the 4th 
quarter between IPID 
and CSPS.

1.1.2 Number of quarterly 
performance reports 
against predetermined 
objectives submitted 
within 30 days of end of 
quarter

4 4 4 None N/A

SUB-PROGRAMME 1.2: CORPORATE SERVICES

Sub-Programme Purpose: To provide reliable and efficient corporate services to the CSPS

Strategic Objective:  To provide effective and sufficient corporate services to the CSPS to enable the achievements of its 

oversight mandate through communication, information technology, human resources and auxiliary services

Programme Performance 
Indicators

Baseline 
(Actual 

Achievement) 
2017/18

Actual Performance against 
Target

Deviation 
from planned 

target to 
actual 

achievement 
for 2018/19

Reason for
Deviation

Target 
2018/19

Actual 
2018/19

1.2.1 Number of Workplace 
Skills Plans (WSPs) 
approved by the Secretary

1 1 1 None N/A

1.2.2 Maintain vacancy rate 
not more than 10% of the 
total post established

6,7% Not more 
than 10% of 

total post 
establishment

6,7% None N/A



24 |  Annual Report 2018/19

SUB-PROGRAMME 1.3: FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION

Sub-Programme purpose: Provide Public Finance Management Act (PFMA)-compliant financial, accounting and supply chain 

services to the CSPS

Strategic Objective:  To ensure sound corporate governance, provide supply chain and financial management services in line 

with financial management legislation

Programme Performance 
Indicators

Baseline 
(Actual 

Achievement) 
2017/18

Actual Performance against 
Target

Deviation 
from planned 

target to 
actual 

achievement 
for 2018/19

Reason for
Deviation

Target 
2018/19

Actual 
2018/19

1.3.1 Percentage of payments 
made to creditors within 
30 days

97% 100% 98% (2%) 2% deviation is mainly 
due to problems 
experienced with LOGIS 
during the first year of 
implementation

1.3.2 Percentage of Internal 
Audit recommendation 
implemented

80% 100% 90% (10%) Findings which could not 
be fully resolved relates 
to financial systems 
closure and vacant posts

1.3.3 Percentage of external 
audit recommendations 
implemented

88% 100% 50% (50%) Two (2) out of four (4) 
findings could not be 
fully resolved as it relates 
to payments within 30 
days and the percentage 
of expenditure in relation 
to budget

1.3.4 Percentage of 
expenditure in relation to 
Budget allocated

95% 95% 94% (1%) The main reason for 
underspending is due to 
vacant funded posts (6.7%) 
at different periods of 
the financial year and the 
turnover rate of (5%). The 
amount equals 6% of the 
Compensation budget.

Strategies to overcome areas of underperformance: 

• Controls are being implemented to ensure that challenges relating to the LOGIS system such as late payments of 

creditors are resolved;

• The Human Resource Committee has been established. Among other responsibilities, the Committee will oversee the 

process of filling vacant funded posts.  Furthermore, the vacancy rate target has been reduced to no more than 7% of 

the total post establishment.
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PROGRAMME 2: INTERSECTORAL COORDINATION AND STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS

Programme Purpose: To manage and encourage national dialogue on community safety and crime prevention

Strategic Objective: To contribute towards creating a safe and secure environment through ongoing partnerships with 

stakeholders

Programme Expenditure

Programme Name

2018/19 2017/18

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Intersectoral 
Coordination and 
Strategic Partnerships

24 345 21 976 2 369 23 251 20 945 2 306

Total 24 345 21 976 2 369 23 251 20 945 2 306

SUB PROGRAMME 2.1: INTERGOVERNMENTAL, CIVIL SOCIETY & PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS

Sub-Programme purpose: Manage and facilitate intergovernmental, civil society and public partnerships 

Strategic Objective: To contribute towards creating a safe and secure environment through partnerships with stakeholders

Programme Performance 
Indicators

Baseline 
(Actual 

Achievement) 
2017/18

Actual Performance against 
Target

Deviation 
from planned 

target to 
actual 

achievement 
for 2018/19

Reason for
Deviation

Target 
2018/19

Actual 
2018/19

2.1.1 Number of Memoranda 
of Understanding (MoUs) 
signed with stakeholders 
in order to build safer 
communities

2 2 2 None N/A

2.1.2 Number of workshops 
facilitated with 
Provincial Secretariats 
and municipalities on 
the establishment of 
Community Safety 
Forums (CSFs) per year

20 9 12 3 There was a high 
demand for CSF 
workshops

2.1.3 Number of provincial 
capacity-building 
sessions held on crime-
prevention policies per 
year

9 9 9 None N/A
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Programme Performance 
Indicators

Baseline 
(Actual 

Achievement) 
2017/18

Actual Performance against 
Target

Deviation 
from planned 

target to 
actual 

achievement 
for 2018/19

Reason for
Deviation

Target 
2018/19

Actual 
2018/19

2.1.4 Number of partnership 
strategies approved by 
the Secretary per year

New 
Indicator

1 0 (1) The process of 
appointing a service 
provider took longer 
than anticipated as it 
included amongst other 
things vetting.

2.1.5 Number of Anti-crime 
Campaigns conducted 
per year

3 3 4 1 Department held one 
additional Anti-Crime 
Campaign with the 
Council of Traditional 
Leaders in Richards Bay

2.1.6 Number of monitoring 
reports on implementing 
Community Police  
Forum (CPF) regulations/
standards approved by 
the Secretary per year

New 
Indicator

2 2 None N/A

SUB PROGRAMME 2.2: COMMUNITY OUTREACH

Sub-Programme purpose: Promote, encourage and facilitate community participation in safety programmes

Strategic Objective:  To enhance stakeholder and community participation in safety and crime prevention programmes 

through izimbizo, establishment of working groups and CPF functionality

Programme Performance 
Indicators

Baseline 
(Actual 

Achievement) 
2017/18

Actual Performance against 
Target

Deviation 
from planned 

target to 
actual 

achievement 
for 2018/19

Reason for
Deviation

Target 
2018/19

Actual 
2018/19

2.2.1 Number of izimbizo/
public participation 
programmes held with 
communities to promote 
community safety per 
year

7 8 9 1 Increased service 
delivery protests and 
extra community 
outreach programmes 
required an additional 
programme.

2.2.2 Number of promotional 
events for the Office of 
the Directorate for Priority 
Crime Investigation (DPCI) 
Judge per year

New 
Indicator

6 2 (4) All promotional events 
for quarters 2 and 3 
were put on hold by the 
Judge. 
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Strategies to overcome areas of underperformance:

• Revised events programme is planned for the DPCI Judge in the new financial year.

PROGRAMME 3: LEGISLATION AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT

Purpose of Programme: Develop policy and legislation for the police sector and conduct research on policing and crime

Strategic Objective: Constitutionally compliant legislation, research and evidence-led policies on policing and safety.

SUB PROGRAMME 3.1: POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND RESEARCH

Sub-Programme purpose: Develop policies and undertakes research in areas of policing and crime

Strategic Objective: To provide evidence-based research and evidence-led policies on policing, crime and safety to the 

Minister of Police

Sub-programme Expenditure

Sub-Programme 3.1

 2018/19 2017/18

Final
Appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/
Under

Expenditure

Final
Appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/
Under

Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Policy Development
and Research

14 220 13 433 787 12 659 12 345 314

Total 14 220 13 433 787 12 659 12 345 314

Programme Performance 
Indicators

Baseline 
(Actual 

Achievement) 
2017/18

Actual Performance against 
Target

Deviation 
from planned 

target to 
actual 

achievement 
for 2018/19

Reason for
Deviation

Target 
2018/19

Actual 
2018/19

3.1.1 Number of policies on 
policing submitted to the 
Minister for approval per 
year

2 3 3 None N/A

3.1.2 Number of research 
reports on policing 
approved by the 
Secretary per year

2 2 2 None N/A

3.1.3 Number of newsletters 
(gazettes) published on 
SaferSpaces per year

New 
Indicator

1 1 None N/A



28 |  Annual Report 2018/19

SUB-PROGRAMME 3.2:  LEGISLATION

Sub-Programme Purpose: Provide legislative support services to the Minister

Strategic Objective:  Effective policing legislation and legal advice and support to the Minister 

Sub-programme expenditure

Sub-Programme 3.2

2018/19 2017/18

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Legislation 7 172 6 953 219 6 239 6 235 4

Total 7 172 6 953 219 6 239 6 235 4

Programme Performance
 Indicators

Baseline 
(Actual 

Achievement) 
2017/18

Actual Performance 
against Target

Deviation 
from planned 

target to
 actual 

achievement 
for 2018/19

Reason for
Deviation

Target 
2018/19

Actual 
2018/19

3.2.1 Number of Bills 
submitted to the Minister 
for approval per year

4 3 3 None N/A

3.2.2 Number of Regulations 
submitted to the Minister 
for promulgation per year

New 
Indicator

1 1 1 N/A

PROGRAMME 4:  CIVILIAN OVERSIGHT, MONITORING AND EVALUATION 

Programme Purpose: Oversee, monitor and report on the performance of the South African Police Service.

Strategic Objective: Effective oversight, monitoring and evaluation that contributes towards an accountable and transformed 

police service

Programme expenditure

Programme Name

2018/19 2017/18

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Police Performance, 
Conduct and 
Compliance

16 912 16 838 74 16 434 15 231 1 203
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Programme Name

2018/19 2017/18

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Policy and Programme 
Evaluations

4 497 4 469 28 4 963 4 874 89

Information 
Management

826 813 13 561 - 561

Office of the 
Directorate for Priority 
Crime Investigation 
Judge

5 139 4 032 1 107 4 735 4 663 72

National Forensic 
Oversight and Ethics 
Board

3 671 2 278 1 393 3 143 2 042 1 101

Total 31 045 28 430 2 615 29 836 26 810 3 026

SUB-PROGRAMME 4.1: POLICE PERFORMANCE, CONDUCT AND COMPLIANCE MONITORING

Sub-Programme purpose: Monitor the performance, conduct, compliance and transformation of the South African Police 

Service

Strategic Objective: Effective oversight, monitoring and evaluation to improve police compliance and conduct

Programme Performance 
Indicators

Baseline 
(Actual 

Achievement) 
2017/18

Actual Performance against 
Target

Deviation 
from planned 

target to 
actual 

achievement 
for 2018/19

Reason for
Deviation

Target 
2018/19

Actual 
2018/19

4.1.1 Number of Police Station 
Oversight Reports 
approved by the 
Secretary per year

65 1 1 None N/A

4.1.2 Number of Police Station 
Service Delivery Trends 
Analyses Reports 
approved by the 
Secretary per year

2 1 1 None N/A

4.1.3 Number of SAPS 
Budget and Programme 
Performance Assessment 
Reports approved by the 
Secretary per year

1 1 1 None N/A
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Programme Performance 
Indicators

Baseline 
(Actual 

Achievement) 
2017/18

Actual Performance against 
Target

Deviation 
from planned 

target to 
actual 

achievement 
for 2018/19

Reason for
Deviation

Target 
2018/19

Actual 
2018/19

4.1.4 Number of Assessment 
Reports on Complaints 
Management approved 
by the Secretary per year

1 2 2 None N/A

4.1.5 Number of reports on 
SAPS implementation of 
IPID Recommendations 
approved by the 
Secretary per year

1 2 2 None N/A

4.1.6 Number of Compliance 
Reports on the 
implementation of 
the Domestic Violence 
Act (98) by the SAPS 
approved by the 
Secretary per year

2 2 2 None N/A

4.1.7 Number of reports on 
the implementation 
of and compliance 
with legislation and 
policies approved by the 
Secretary per year

1 1 1 None N/A

4.1.8 Number of assessment 
reports on Litigation 
Management approved 
by the Secretary per year

New Indi-
cator

1 1 None N/A

4.1.9 Number of monitoring 
reports on police stations’ 
implementation of the 
school safety protocol 
approved by the 
Secretary per year

2 2 2 None N/A
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SUB-PROGRAMME 4.2: POLICY AND PROGRAMME EVALUATIONS

Sub-programme purpose: Evaluate the effectiveness of programmes implemented by the South African Police Service.

Strategic Objective: Evaluate the effectiveness, efficiency and impact of programmes implemented by SAPS

Programme Performance
 Indicators

Baseline 
(Actual 

Achievement) 
2017/18

Actual Performance against 
Target

Deviation 
from planned 

target to 
actual 

achievement 
for 2018/19

Reason for
Deviation

Target 
2018/19

Actual 
2018/19

4.2.1 Number of assessment 
reports on functionality 
of CSFs approved by the 
Secretary per year

0 1 1 None N/A

4.2.2 Number of customer 
satisfaction survey 
reports approved by the 
Secretary per year

1 1 1 None N/A
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Part C
Governance
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3.1 INTRODUCTION

The Secretariat is now operating as a designated department with minor inadequacies like the lack of a fully implemented LOGIS 

system. Internal auditing, risk management, anti-fraud and anti-corruption systems are effectively operational to conform to 

National Treasury and PFMA conditions and regulations. 

3.2 RISK MANAGEMENT

An overview of risk management within the department:

• The department has an approved Risk Management Policy and Strategy.

• The department conducted an annual strategic risk assessment to review the previous risk register and to identify, 

evaluate and develop actions to reduce the probability of occurrence and impact of emerging risks that may have 

a negative effect on the departmental goals and objectives. Furthermore, operational risk assessments for all the 

directorates were also conducted during the 2018/19 financial year.

• The Executive Risk Management and Ethics Committee monitored the implementation of risk action plans to ensure 

that the department reduces high risks to acceptable levels. 

• The Audit and Risk Committee advised management on risk matters to ensure that the department maintains an 

effective, efficient and transparent system of risk management.

• Although the department has an effective system of risk management in place, the department will continue to identify 

risks and implement action plans to achieve continuous improvement of the overall departmental performance is 

successful.

3.3 FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

• CSPS has developed and approved a Fraud Policy, a Fraud Prevention Plan, Whistle Blowing Policy, Gift and Hospitality 

and Outside Public Service Remunerative Work Policy. 

• A fraud risk assessment was conducted and the identified risks are continually monitored through a mitigation plan by 

the established governance structures. 

• CSPS supports the National Anti–Corruption Hotline by encouraging all its employees to report any suspected activities 

of fraud and corruption.

• The departmental Whistle Blowing Policy outlines all internal and external fraud and corruption reporting mechanisms, 

and assures employees protection regarding confidential disclosures, in terms of the Protected Disclosure Act 26 of 

2000. 

• CSPS is committed to investigate and report on all reported cases of fraud and corruption to the relevant institutions 

and authorities, depending on the outcome of the preliminary investigations.

• Risk Management and Ethics Committee provide oversight over the implementation of the Integrity Strategy and 

Implementation Plan and Risk Register. 

3.4 MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

• Six awareness sessions on ethics and integrity were conducted during financial year 2018/2019

• Financial disclosure through the e-disclosure system was completed by all Senior Management Services (SMS) members, 

Middle Management Services (MMS) members and by all officials below level 11 in Supply Chain Management and 

Finance Directorates.

• All employees in the CSPS are required to request permission from the Secretary for Police Service (as delegated 
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authority) before they perform remunerative work outside the Public Service. 

• Members of three (3) different SCM committees declare and sign a declaration of interests during their committee 

meetings. They also undertook to adhere to the requirements of the code of conduct.

• SCM Practitioners were issued with a Code of Conduct for SCM Practitioners and all signed the code of conduct form for 

SCM Practitioners.

3.5 CODE OF CONDUCT 

All staff members have been workshopped on the Code of Conduct. The purpose of the workshop was to ensure that employees 

understand it to ensure successful implementation. 

3.6 HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

A senior manager in the HR unit is responsible for health safety and environmental issues.

3.7 PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES

During the 2018/19 financial year, Portfolio Committee meetings were held on the 20th April 2018, June 2018, 5th September 

2018 and 11th October 2018. 

Matters raised by the Portfolio Committee and actions taken by the Secretariat

No. Recommendation Deadline Action Taken

1. The Department should continue its 
performance regarding the clean audit opinion 
of the AGSA.

n.d. • A monitoring tool has been developed to 
address all the findings raised by AGSA during 
the 2017/18 financial year. 

• Internal Audit Unit has further conducted a 
follow-up audit and issued a report during 
February 2019. 

2. The Department should fill vacancies to address 
and mitigate material underspending in the 
2018/19 financial year.

n.d. A Human Resource Committee has been 
established to oversee the filling of vacant 
positions, among other roles.

3. The Department should clarify the supporting 
role rendered to the DNA Board and Office of the 
DPCI Judge and address the concerns raised by 
the two oversight bodies. 

n.d. The DPCI Judge and NFOEB (DNA Board) are 
provided with full administrative and financial 
support from the CSPS. 

For the DPCI Judge, the following posts were 
approved and budgeted for during the year 
under review:
• Director: Admin Head
• Personal Admin Support to Judge; and 
• Investigator 

4. The Department should address the challenges 
regarding inadequate office space. The National 
Treasury should engage the SAPS to reallocate 
the funds for office accommodation to the De-
partment. 

n.d. • The National Treasury has diverted funds from 
the South African Police Service budget to the 
Department. 

• A Relocation Committee has been established 
to oversee the process of relocation.
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No. Recommendation Deadline Action Taken

5. The Department should play a prominent role 
in identifying community concerns regarding 
satisfaction with the SAPS and crime rates to 
serve as an early warning before these concerns 
escalate into protest action. 

n.d. Safety audits were conducted in police stations 
with high levels of crime to deepen the 
understanding of crime and its contributory 
factors towards identifying appropriate 
interventions.

6. The Department should implement the new 
organisational structure as soon as it is approved 
by the DPSA. The Department should prioritise 
the filling of the 50 additional posts.

n.d. The department could not implement the 
proposed structure due to budgetary constraints. 
However, the proposed organisational structure 
together with supporting documents have 
been submitted to Organisational Development 
Unit within the Department of Public Service 
and Administration for quality assurance before 
submission to the Ministry for Public Service and 
Administration (MPSA).

7. The Department should increase its focus on the 
establishment and efficacy of CSFs. 

31/03/2020 • Partnered with SALGA and the Department 
of Cooperative Governance and Traditional 
Affairs to support the implementation of the   
Community Safety Forums Policy. 

• Provided technical support concerning the 
establishment of CSFs in municipalities. 

• Monitored the functionality of CSFs.

8. The Department should ensure that all 
Community Police Forum (CPF) members are 
adequately trained and should prioritise the 
finalisation and implementation of the CPF 
Training Manual.   

n.d. • Training of CPF members is being conducted. 
• Development of a training manual in progress.
• Engagements are underway with training 

institutions to assist in rolling out training in 
different provinces.

• The department has been registered with 
the Safety and Security Sector Education 
and Training Authority (SASSETA) to ensure 
approval of the curriculum content for the CPF 
training manual. 

• Engagements are underway with SAPS, CPFs, 
and other relevant stakeholders to assist with 
the development of the curriculum content 
for the training manual.

9. The Department should monitor the 
implementation of the CPF Strategy developed by 
the SAPS and ensure that it is in-line with the CPF 
Policy. 

31/03/2020 The department monitors the implementation 
of CPF Regulations in all provinces and provides 
reports quarterly.
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No. Recommendation Deadline Action Taken

10. The Department should fast-track the finalisation 
of the amendment to the DNA Act to allow 
for DNA samples to be taken from convicted 
schedule 8 offenders incarcerated before the 
implementation of the DNA Act.  

n.d. • The drafting team finalised the draft Bill early 
last year. However, during April 2018, the Bill 
was withdrawn from the agenda at the Cabinet 
Committee by the Minister. Other technical 
amendments requested by the Minister were 
also incorporated. The Drafting Team await 
further instructions from the Minister. 

• The Minister proposed to include all citizens in 
the country in the buccal sampling process to 
curb crime.  

• A letter has been written to the Minister of 
Home Affairs, requesting him to consider 
effecting amendments to the relevant 
legislation as this matter falls within the 
exclusive mandate of the Department of 
Home Affairs. We await further instructions 
from the Minister. 

Reporting Requirements

No Recommendation Deadline Action Taken

1. The locations of all CSFs countrywide, including 
those that must still be established and 
challenges experienced with the establishment 
thereof.  

31/10/2018 Workshops are continuously held with 
municipalities and other stakeholders on how to 
establish CSFs. 

2. The Department must provide a copy of the 
evaluation report of the efficacy of CPFs during 
the 2017/18 financial year and also indicate how 
the identified gaps will be addressed.  

31/10/2018 The report was compiled and submitted.

3. A copy of the Customer Satisfaction Survey 
report, together with the action steps that will be 
taken by the Department and those that will be 
recommended to the SAPS and Minister of Police 
to address poor satisfaction results. 

31/10/2018 The report for Customer Satisfaction Survey was 
compiled and approved during the 4th quarter 
of the 2018/19 financial year.

4. A gender breakdown of youths employed by the 
Department.

31/10/2018 The department has employed a total of 44 
youth, which comprises of 26 females and 18 
males. The total number of youth employed 
constitutes 31% of the employees within the 
Department.
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No Recommendation Deadline Action Taken

5. Report on the current status of the DNA 
Amendment Bill together with an estimated date 
for finalisation.

31/10/2018 The Drafting Team finalised the draft Bill early 
last year. However, during April 2018, the Bill 
was withdrawn by the Minister from the agenda 
at the Cabinet Committee. Other technical 
amendments requested by the Minister were 
also incorporated. The Drafting Team await 
further instructions from the Minister.
Moreover, the Minister proposed to include all 
citizens in the country in the buccal sampling 
process to curb crime.  

National Forensic Oversight and Ethics Board (DNA Board)

No Recommendation Deadline Action Taken

1. The Minister of Police should review the 
composition of the DNA Board concerning 
the commitment of Board Members. Where 
deficiencies are identified with the attendance of 
members, such members should be replaced.

n.d. A decision was taken in terms of section 15W 
(2) (d) of the Criminal Law (Forensic Procedures) 
Amendment Act of 2013 to remove members 
that were not complying with the Act. 

2. The Board should make every effort to build 
a strong relationship with the CSPS, as the 
Department is a key stakeholder in the oversight 
architecture over the SAPS.

n.d. A draft Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) 
has been compiled and is yet to be finalised.

3. The Board should continue engagements with 
the Registrar of Sexual Offences to ensure 
alignment to the NFDD.

n.d. • The Registrar provided an initial ‘data dump’ 
to the FSL. However, some of the data could 
not be aligned to the FSL database due to 
incomplete information. The Registrar further 
stated that it would take approximately 18 
months to audit the data

• The Board will continue its engagement with 
the Registrar to ensure that the outstanding 
information is submitted.

4. The Board should take cognisance of the 
procurement protocols in the public sector, 
especially in terms of the procurement of office 
accommodation.

n.d. The DNA Secretariat has been appointed to the 
Office relocation Committee to ensure that the 
board’s requirements are considered.
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No Recommendation Deadline Action Taken

5. The CSPS should assist the DNA in every way to 
ensure that the amendments to the DNA Act 
are finalised. In instances where information is 
required, the Board must assist in obtaining the 
required information. 

n.d. • The drafting team finalised the draft Bill early 
last year. However, during April 2018, the 
Bill was withdrawn from the agenda at the 
Cabinet Committee by the Minister. Other 
technical amendments requested by the 
Minister were also incorporated. The Drafting 
Team await further instructions from the 
Minister. 

• The Minister proposed to include all citizens in 
the country in the buccal sampling process to 
curb crime.  

• A letter has been written to the Minister of 
Home Affairs, requesting him to consider 
effecting amendments to the relevant 
legislation as this matter falls within the 
exclusive mandate of the Department of 
Home Affairs. We await further instructions 
from the Minister.

6. The Board must communicate with the Minister 
of Police regularly to ensure that challenges 
experienced in areas that fall within the Board’s 
mandate are addressed.

n.d. A letter was written to the Minister outlining the 
challenges faced by the Board.

7. The Board should engage the SAPS to find 
solutions to the procurement challenges 
experienced regarding DNA collection kits.

n.d. The Board wrote a letter to the National 
Commissioner in this regard. Further 
engagements on this matter take place during 
quarterly meetings with the FSL.
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3.8 INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT

The Secretariat does not have an internal control unit, however, a provision will be made in the new proposed structure. 

3.9 INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT ON VOTE NO. 23: CIVILIAN SECRETARIAT FOR POLICE SERVICE 

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 MARCH 2019. 

Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) members and attendance

The Audit and Risk Committee consists of the members listed hereunder. During the current financial year five meetings were held.

NAME OF MEMBER NUMBER OF MEETINGS 
ATTENDED

Mr. Stephen K Motuba (External Member) (Chairperson effective 1 December 2018) 5

Prof. Herman de Jager (External Member) (Chairperson until 30 November 2018) 5

Mr. Phuti Phukubje (External Member) 5

Ms. Sedie J Masite (External Member) 4

    

At the above meetings, the Auditor General South Africa (AGSA), the in-house Internal Audit staff, the Accounting Officer including 

Senior Management for the different directorates of the Civilian Secretariat for Police Service (CSPS) were invited and attended the 

meetings.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY

The Audit and Risk Committee report that it has complied with the responsibilities arising from Section 77 of the PFMA 2009 as 

amended and section 27.1.1-3 of the Treasury Regulations. The Audit and Risk Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate 

formal terms of reference, which are contained in its Audit and Risk Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with 

this Charter, and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein. The Audit and Risk Charter is reviewed on an annual basis. 

We have not reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices.

THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL

In the financial period under review, ARC reviewed and evaluated the manner in which the department carried out its responsibilities.

Our review of the findings of the Internal Audit work, which was based on the risk assessments conducted in the department revealed 

certain weaknesses which were raised with the department and are being attended to.

The following were areas of concern:

Segregation of duties – which is mainly attributable to shortage of staff.

INTERNAL AUDIT 

We have reviewed the work of Internal Audit to ensure that it is in line with the Internal Audit Charter approved by the ARC. The 
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internal Audit continued to provide the Audit and Risk Committee and management with independent reports and assurance of 

the effectiveness of internal controls of those areas examined in terms of the Audit Plan based on the risk assessment. Internal Audit 

has reported that they do not have enough capacity due to shortage of staff. Management has given assurance that this is being 

attended to. 

IN YEAR MANAGEMENT AND MONTHLY / QUARTELY REPORT

The department has been reporting monthly and quarterly to the National Treasury as is required by the Public Finance Management 

Act (PFMA). The Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of the reports issued by Senior Management.

EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

We have reviewed the Annual Financial Statements prepared by the department including the following:

• reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial Statements to be included in the Annual Report, with the AGSA and 

Senior Management;

• reviewed the AGSA management report and management responses thereto;

• reviewed the departments compliance with legal and regulatory provisions based on the findings of the AGSA and Internal 

Audit; and

• noted that there were certain adjustments resulting from the audit.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The department has an adequate risk management process in place. However, this still needs to be capacitated so as to make it more 

effective.

AUDITOR GENERAL SOUTH AFRICA REPORT

We have reviewed the departments implementation plan for audit issues raised in the previous year and we are satisfied that the 

matters have been adequately resolved.

The Audit and Risk Committee has met with the AGSA to ensure there are no unresolved issues as at 31 July 2019.

The Audit and Risk Committee concurs and accepts the conclusions of the AGSA on the Annual Financial Statements and is of the 

opinion that the unqualified audited annual financial statements be accepted and read together with the report of the AGSA.

APPRECIATION 

In conclusion, the Audit and Risk Committee expresses its appreciation to the Executive Authority, Accounting Officer, Senior 

Management and all other key role players for the effective and productive meetings the Audit and Risk Committee had for the 

period under review. 

________________________

Mr. Stephen Komane Motuba

Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee

Date: 31 July 2019

_______________________
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Part D
Human Resource 
Management



44 |  Annual Report 2018/19

4.1 INTRODUCTION 

4.1.1 THE STATUS OF HR IN THE DEPARTMENT

The purpose of the Chief Directorate: Corporate Services is to provide reliable and efficient corporate services to the CSPS. 

Corporate Services provides services relating to organisational development, human resource management, human resource 

development, employee relations, employee wellness, ICT as well as Auxiliary Services. The Chief Directorate’s primary focus 

is on capacity building with a view to ensuring alignment between the departmental service delivery imperatives and its 

mandates and strategic objectives.

4.1.2 HR PRIORITIES FOR THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW AND THE IMPACT OF THESE PRIORITIES

During the year under review, the Chief Directorate: Corporate Services commits itself to:

a)  Development of Human Resource Strategy;

b)  Development of Employment Equity Plan; and

c)  Facilitated the process to review the organisational structure. 

4.1.3 CAPACITATING EMPLOYEES WITHIN THE DEPARTMENT 

The department managed to implement the General Public Service Sectoral Bargaining Council Resolution 5 OF 2014 

(Recognition of Improved Qualifications) in which seven (7) employees officials were paid the cash incentives for advancing 

their academic studies at their own cost.

Ten (10) Senior Managers were enrolled in the Executive Development Programme (EDP), which facilitated by the National 

School of Government in collaboration with the University of North West. The primary purpose of this intervention is to improve 

competence and to address individual professional development needs of Senior Managers in order to build the capacity of 

public service leaders within the department. Senior Managers are put through this intervention to address skills gaps that 

were identified through competency assessment.

4.1.4 BURSARIES FOR EMPLOYEES 

The department concluded a MoU with PSETA, which resulted in the Department being awarded a discretionary grant of R 520 

00.00 in which employees were offered bursaries to pursue academic studies in higher institution of learning.    

4.1.5 CHALLENGES FACED BY THE DEPARTMENT

The non-alignment of the approved organisation structure with the mandate of the department is a challenge as the capacity 

is inadequate. However, a draft organisational structure is in place to address the capacity challenges.

The key challenges in the HR environment include not meeting targets in terms of the appointment of people with disabilities 

and failure to meet the national target regarding the appointment of 50% of females in Senior Management level (L.13-15). As 

at the end of the year under review, the department had appointed only 1 person with a disability which can be translated into 

0.7%, while the appointment of females at Senior Management level was 43%.
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4.1.6 Future HR Plans/Goals

Through the HR Planning process, the following HR Planning Strategic Objectives were identified and will receive preference 

in the 2019/20 financial year.

• Alignment of the Department’s structure with its strategic objectives.

• Implementation of Human Resource strategy.

• Implementation of an employment equity plan.

• Implementation of Health and Wellness in the workplace.

• Review and implementation of HR policies.

4.2 HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS

4.2.1 EXPENDITURE

The following tables summarize final audited expenditure by programme (Table 4.2.1.1) and by salary bands (Table 4.2.1.2). 

In particular, it indicates an indication of the amount spent on personnel costs in terms of each of the programmes or salary 

bands within the department.

Table 4.2.1.1 – Personnel costs by programme, 2018/19

Programme Total 
Expenditure

(R’000)

Personnel 
Expenditure

(R’000)

Training 
Expenditure

(R’000)

Professional 
& Specialized 

Services
(R’000)

Personnel 
cost as a 

percentage of 
total 

expenditure

Average 
personnel 

cost per 
employee

(R’000)

Administration 53 072 39 491 520 454 74% 520

Intersectoral Coordination 
& Strategic Partnership

21 976 15 413 110 88 70% 1028

Legislation and Policy 
Development

20 386 15 626 110 24 77% 558

Civilian Oversight, 
Monitoring and Evaluation

28 430 20 916 50 75 74% 598

Total 123 864 91 446 790 641 74% 593
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Table 4.2.1.2 - Personnel costs by salary bands 2018/19

Salary Bands Personnel Expenditure
(R’000)

% of total personnel 
cost

Average personnel cost 
per employee

(R’000)

Lower skills (Levels 1-2) 1 074 1,2% 134

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 7 028 7,7% 251

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 10 981 12,0% 354

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 
9-12)

39 781 43,5% 710

Senior Management (Levels 13-16) 32 582 35,6% 1051

Total 91 446 100% 593

The following tables provide a summary per programme (Table 4.2.1.3) and salary bands (Table 4.2.1.4), of expenditure incurred 

as a result of salaries, overtime, home owners allowance and medical assistance. In each case, the table provides an indication 

of the percentage of the personnel budget that was used for these items.

Table 4.2.1.3 – Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance, Medical Assistance by programme, 2018/19

Programme Salaries Overtime Home Owners 
Allowance

Medical Assistance

Amount 
(R’000)

Salaries 
as a % of 

personnel 
costs

Amount 
(R’000)

Overtime 
as % of 

personnel 
cost

Amount 
(R’000)

HOA as 
% of 

personnel 
cost

Amount 
(R’000)

Medical 
Assistance 
as a % of 

personnel 
cost

Administration 33 260 84,2% 353 0,9% 672 1,7% 1 478 3,7%

Intersectoral 
Coordination & 
Strategic Part-
nerships

13 342 86,6% 27 0,2% 171 1,1% 455 3,0%

Legislation and 
Policy Develop-
ment

14 666 93,9% 13 0,1% 138 0,9% 327 2,1%

Civilian Over-
sight, Monitor-
ing & Evaluation

17 063 81,6% 83 0,4% 302 1,4% 692 3,3%

Total 78 331 85,7% 476 0,5% 1 283 1,4% 2 952 3,2%
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Table 4.2.1.4 – Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance, Medical Assistance by salary bands, 2018/19

Salary Bands Salaries Overtime Home Owners 
Allowance

Medical Assistance

Amount 
(R’000)

Salaries 
as a % of 

personnel 
costs

Amount 
(R’000)

Overtime 
as % of 

personnel 
cost

Amount 
(R’000)

HOA as % 
of 

personnel 
cost

Amount 
(R’000)

Medical 
Assistance 
as a % of 

personnel 
cost

Lower skilled 
(Levels 1-2)

828 77,1% 6 0,6% 56 5,2% 91 8,5%

Skilled (Levels 
3-5)

5 625 80,0% 95 1,4% 253 3,6% 453 6,5%

Highly skilled 
(Levels 6-8)

8 424 76,7% 221 2,0% 403 3,7% 863 7,9%

Highly skilled 
(Levels 9-12)

34 193 85,9% 154 0,4% 410 1,0% 1 269 3,2%

Senior 
Management 
(Levels 13- 16)

29 261 89,8% 0 0% 161 0,5% 276 0,9%

Total 78 331 85,7% 476 0,5% 1 283 1,4% 2 952 3,2%

4.2.2 EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES

The following tables summarize the number of posts on the establishment, the number of employees, the vacancy rate, and 

whether there is any staff that is additional to the establishment. This information is presented in terms of three key variables: - 

programme (Table 4.2.2.1), salary band (Table 4.2.2.2) and critical occupations (Table 4.2.2.3). Departments have identified critical 

occupations that need to be monitored. Table 3.3 provides establishment and vacancy information for the key critical occupations 

of the department.

The vacancy rate reflects the percentage of posts that are not filled.

Table 4.2.2.1 – Employment and vacancies by programme, 31 March 2019

Programme Number of Posts Number of posts 
filled

Vacancy Rate Number of posts 
filled additional 

to the 
establishment

Administration 74 73 1,35% 3

Partnership 18 15 16,67% 0

Legislation and Policy and Research 32 27 15,63% 1

Monitoring and Evaluation 26 25 3,85% 10

Total 150 140 6,67% 14
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Table 4.2.2.2 – Employment and vacancies by salary bands, 31 March 2019

Salary band Number of Posts Number of posts 
filled

Vacancy Rate Number of posts 
filled additional 

to the 
establishment

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 6 6 0% 2

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 21 18 14.29% 10

Highly skilled Production (Levels 6-8) 33 31 6.06% 0

Highly skilled (Levels 9-12) 60 55 8.33% 1

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 30 30 0% 1

Total 150 140 6.67% 14

Table 4.2.2.3 – Employment and vacancies by critical occupation, 31 March 2019

Critical Occupations Number of Posts Number of posts 
filled

Vacancy Rate Number of posts 
filled additional 

to the 
establishment

Deputy Director General 1 1 0% 0

Chief Directors 6 6 0% 0

Directors 23 23 0% 0

Total 30 30 0% 0

The information in each case reflects the situation as at 31 March 2019. For an indication of changes in staffing patterns over 

the year under review, please refer to section 5 of this report.

4.2.3. FILLING OF SMS POSTS

The tables in this section provide information on employment and vacancies as it relates to members of the Senior Management 

Service by salary level. It also provides information on advertising and filling of SMS posts, reasons for not complying with 

prescribed timeframes and disciplinary steps taken.

Table 4.2.3.1 –SMS post information as on 31 March 2019

SMS Level Total number 
of funded SMS 

posts

Total number of 
SMS posts filled

% of SMS posts 
filled

Total number 
of SMS posts 

vacant

% of SMS posts 
vacant

Director-General (Head of 
Department)

1 1 100% 0 0

Salary level 16 0 0 N/A 0 N/A

Salary level 15 0 0 N/A 0 N/A

Salary level 14 6 6 100% 0 0

Salary level 13 23 23 100% 0 0

Total 30 30 100% 0 0
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Table 4.2.3.2 –SMS post information as on 30 September 2018

SMS Level Total number 
of funded SMS 

posts

Total number of 
SMS posts filled

% of SMS posts 
filled

Total number 
of SMS posts 

vacant

% of SMS posts 
vacant

Director-General (Head of 
Department)

1 1 100% 0 0

Salary level 16 0 0 N/A 0 N/A

Salary level 15 0 0 N/A 0 N/A

Salary level 14 6 6 100% 0 0%

Salary level 13 23 22 95,65% 1 4,35%

Total 30 29 96,67% 1 3,33%

Table 4.2.3.3 –Advertising and filling of SMS posts for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

SMS Level Advertising Filling of Posts

Number of vacancies 
per level advertised in 
6 months of becoming 

vacant

Number of vacancies per 
level filled in 6 months of 

becoming vacant

Number of vacancies 
per level not filled in 6 
months but filled in 12 

months

Director-General/ Head of 
Department

0 0 0

Salary Level 16 0 0 0

Salary Level 15 0 0 0

Salary Level 14 0 0 0

Salary Level 13 1 1 0

Total 1 1 0

Reasons for not having complied with the filling of funded vacant SMS - Advertised within 6 months and filled within 12 

months after becoming vacant for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within 6 months

N/A

Reasons for vacancies not filled within 12 months

N/A

In terms of the Public Service Regulations Chapter 1, Part VII C.1A.3, departments must indicate good cause or reason for not 

having complied with the filling of SMS posts within the prescribed timeframes.

 

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within 6 months

N/A

Reasons for vacancies not filled within 12 months

N/A 
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Disciplinary steps taken for not complying with the prescribed timeframes for filling SMS posts within 12 months for the period 

1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

4.2.4 JOB EVALUATION

The Public Service Regulations, 1999 introduced job evaluation as a way of ensuring that work of equal value is remunerated 

equally. Within a nationally determined framework, executing authorities may evaluate or re-evaluate any job in his or her 

organization. In terms of the Regulations, all vacancies on salary levels 9 and higher must be evaluated before they are filled. 

This was complemented by a decision by the Minister for the Public Service and Administration that all SMS jobs must be 

evaluated before 31 December 2002.

The following table (Table 4.2.4.1) summarizes the number of jobs that were evaluated during the year under review. The table 

also provides statistics on the number of posts that were upgraded or downgraded.

Table 4.2.4.1 – Job Evaluation, 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

Salary band Number of 
posts

Number 
of Jobs 

Evaluated

% of Posts 
Evaluated 
by salary 

Bands

Posts Upgraded Posts downgraded

Number % of posts 
evaluated

Number % of posts 
evaluated

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 6 0 0% 0 0 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 21 1 4,76% 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled Production 
(Levels 6-8)

33 0 0% 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled Supervision 
(Levels 9-12)

60 7 11,67% 0 0 0 0

Senior Management Service 
Band A (13)

23 1 4,35% 0 0 0 0

Senior Management Service 
Band B (14)

6 0 0% 0 0 0 0

Senior Management Service 
Band C (15)

1 0 0% 0 0 0 0

Senior Management Service 
Band D (16)

0 0 N/A 0 N/A 0 N/A

Total 150 9 6% 0 0 0 0

The following table provides a summary of the number of employees whose salary positions were upgraded due to their 

posts being upgraded. The number of employees might differ from the number of posts upgraded since not all employees are 

automatically absorbed into the new posts and some of the posts upgraded could also be vacant.
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Table 4.2.4.2 – Profile of employees whose salary positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded, 1 April 

2018 to 31 March 2019

Beneficiaries African Indian Coloured White Total

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0

Table 4.2.4.3 – Employees whose salary level exceed the grade determined by job evaluation, 1 April 2018 to 31 March 

2019 (in terms of PSR 1.V.C.3)

Occupation Number of 
Employees

Job Evaluation 
Level

Remuneration 
on level

Reason for 
Deviation

0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0

Total Number of Employees whose salaries exceeded the level determined by job 
evaluation in 2018/19 0

4.2.5 EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year.

Turnover rates provide an indication of trends in the employment profile of the department. The following tables provide a 

summary of turnover rates by salary band (Table 4.2.5.1) and by critical occupations (Table 4.2.5.2). (These “critical occupations” 

should be the same as those listed in Table 4.2.2.3).

Table 4.2.5.1 – Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

Salary bands Number of 
Employees per 

band 

Appointments 
and transfers 

into the 
department

Terminations 
and transfers 

out of the 
department

Turnover Rate

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 6 0 0 0%

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 18 3 1 5,56%

Highly skilled Production (Levels 6-8) 31 4 3 9,68%

Highly skilled Supervision (Levels 9-12) 55 4 2 3,64%

Senior management Band A (L13) 23 3 1 4,35%

Senior management Band B (L14) 6 0 0 0%

Senior management Band C (L15) 1 0 0 0%

Senior management Band D (L16) 0 0 0 N/A

Total 140 14 7 5%
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Table 4.2.5.2– Reasons why staff are leaving the department

Termination Type Number % of Total

Death 1 0,71%

Resignation 3 2,14%

Expiry of contract 0 0%

Dismissal – operational changes 0 0%

Dismissal – inefficiency 0 0%

Discharged due to ill-health 0 0%

Retirement 0 0%

Transfers to other Public Service Departments: promotion and lateral 
transfer

3 2,14%

Other 0 0%

Total 7 5%

Total number of employees who left as at 31 March 2018 7

Table 4.2.5.3 – Promotions by critical occupation 

Occupation Employees as at 
1 April 2018

Promotion to 
another salary 

level

Salary 
promotions as a 
% of employees 
by occupation

Progressions to 
another notch 
within a salary 

level

Notch 
progression as 

a % of 
employees by 

occupation

Senior Management Service 
(Level 13)

1 1 0 0 0

Total 1 1 0 0 0

Table 4.2.5.4 – Promotions by salary band

Occupation Employees as at 
1 April 2018

Promotion to 
another salary 

level

Salary 
promotions as a 
% of employees 
by occupation

Progressions to 
another notch 
within a salary 

level

Notch 
progression as 

a % of 
employees by 

occupation

Senior Management (Levels 
13-16)

28 1 3.57% 0 0%

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12)

56 2 3.57% 0 0%

Highly skilled Production 
(Levels 6-8)

30 2 6.67% 0 0%

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 19 0 0% 0 0%

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 6 0 0% 0 0%

Total 139 5 3.60% 0 0%
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4.2.6 EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

The tables in this section are based on the formats prescribed by the Employment Equity Act, 55 of 1998.

Table 4.2.6.1 – Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational 

bands as on 31 March 2019

Occupational Categories 
(SASCO)

Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Legislators, Senior Officials 
and Managers (11-15)

26 2 0 2 23 2 2 0 57

Professionals ( 8-10) 11 0 0 0 26 0 0 1 38

Technicians and Associate 
Professionals (7)

7 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 13

Clerks (4-6) 10 0 0 0 11 0 0 0 21

Service and Sales Workers 
(1-3)

7 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 11

Skilled Agriculture and 
Fishery Workers

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and Related Trades 
Workers

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and Machine 
Operators and Assemblers

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary Occupations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 61 2 0 2 70 2 2 1 140

Employees with Disabilities 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
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Table 4.2.6.2 – Recruitment for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

Occupational Bands Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management (14-16) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management (13) 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 3

Professionally qualified and 
Experienced specialists and 
mid-management (11-12)

1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2

Skilled technical 
and academically 
qualified workers, 
junior management, 
supervisors, foreman and 
superintendents (9-10)

2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

Semi-skilled and 
Discretionary decision 
making (6-8)

2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 4

Unskilled and defined 
decision making (1-5)

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Total 8 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 14

Employees with Disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 4.2.6.3– Promotions for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

Occupational Band Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management (14-16) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management (13) 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Professionally qualified and 
Experienced specialists and 
mid-management (11-12)

0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1

Skilled technical 
and academically 
qualified workers, 
junior management, 
supervisors, foreman and 
superintendents (9-10)

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Semi-skilled and 
Discretionary decision 
making (6-8)

0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Unskilled and defined 
decision making (1-5)

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 1 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 5

Employees with Disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Table 4.2.6.4 – Terminations for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

Occupational Band Male Female

TotalAfrican Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management (14-16) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management (13) 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Professionally qualified and 
Experienced specialists and 
mid-management (11-12) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled technical 
and academically 
qualified workers, 
junior management, 
supervisors, foreman and 
superintendents (9-10) 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2

Semi-skilled and 
Discretionary decision 
making (6-8) 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 3

Unskilled and defined 
decision making (1-5) 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Total 5 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 7

Employees with Disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 4.2.6.5 – Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

Male Female

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Disciplinary Action 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0
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Table 4.2.6.6 Skills development for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

Occupational
Categories

Gender Number of 
employees 

as at 1st April 
2018

Training needs identified at the start of the
 reporting period

Learnerships Skills 
programmes 
& other short 

courses

Other forms 
of training

Total

Legislators, Senior Officials, 
and Managers (11-15)

Female 30 0 8 8 16

Male 25 0 9 8 17

Professionals (8-10) Female 10 0 21 2 23

Male 29 0 8 5 13

Technicians and Associate 
Professionals (7)

Female 7 0 1 1 2

Male 6 0 3 0 3

Clerks (4-6) Female 9 0 8 6 14

Male 12 0 4 3 7

Service and Sales Workers 
(1-3)

Female 7 2 16 0 18

Male 4 6 10 0 16

Skilled Agriculture and Fishery 
workers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and Related Trades 
Workers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and Machine Operators 
and Assemblers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary Occupations Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Subtotal Female 63 2 54 17 73

Male 76 6 34 16 56

Total 139 8 88 33 129
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4.2.7 PERFORMANCE REWARDS

To encourage good performance, the department has granted the following performance rewards during the year under 

review. The information is presented in terms of race, gender, and disability (Table 4.2.7.1), salary bands (table 4.2.7.2) and 

critical occupations (table 4.2.7.3).

Table 4.2.7.1 – Performance Rewards by race, gender, and disability, 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018

Gender & Race Beneficiary Profile Cost

Number of 
Beneficiaries

Total number of 
employees in a 

group

% of total 
within group

Cost (R’000) Average cost 
per employee

African 44 131 33,59% 1071,4 24 351

Male 18 60 30% 440,2 24 457

Female 26 71 36,62% 631,2 24 278

Indian 1 2 50% 38,9 38 940

Male 0 0 N/A 0 0

Female 1 2 50% 38,9 38 940

Coloured 1 4 25% 37,0 37 040

Male 0 2 0% 0 0

Female 1 2 50% 37,0 37 040

White 2 3 66,67% 85,7 42 868

Male 1 2 50% 69,4 69 405

Female 1 1 100% 16,3 16 330

Employees with a 
disability

0 0 0% 0 0

Total 48 140 33.57% 1233,0 25 691

Table 4.2.7.2 – Performance Rewards by salary bands for personnel below Senior Management Service, 1 April 2018 

to 31 March 2019 for the 2017/18 financial year

Salary Bands Beneficiary Profile Cost

Number of 
Beneficiaries

Number of 
Employees

% of Total 
within Salary 

Bands

Total Cost
(R’000)

Average cost 
per employee

Total cost as a 
% of the total 

personnel 
expenditure

Lower skilled (Levels 
1-2)

3 6 50.00% 13.81 4 603 1,71%

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 11 17 64.70% 82.73 7 520 2,07%

Highly skilled produc-
tion levels 6-8

9 31 29.03% 109.99 12 221 1,00%

Highly skilled supervi-
sion (Levels 9-12)

20 56 35.71% 671.83 33 591 1,72%

Total 43 110 39.09% 878.36 20 427 2,79%
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Table 4.2.7.3 – Performance-related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band, for Senior Management Service

Salary Bands Beneficiary Profile Cost

Number of 
Beneficiaries

Number of 
Employees

% of Total 
within Salary 

Band

Total Cost
(R’000)

Average cost 
per employee

Total cost as a 
% of the total 

personnel 
expenditure

Band A Level 13 4 24 16,67% 247 61 840.60 0,78%

Band B Level 14 0 6 0% 0 0 N/A

Band C Level 15 0 1 0% 0 0 N/A

Band D Level 16 0 0 N/A 0 0 N/A

Total 4 31 12,90% 247 61 840.60 0,78%

4.2.8 LEAVE UTILISATION

Table 4.2.8.1. – Sick leave, 01 January 2018 – 31 December 2018

Salary Band Total days Number of 
employees 

who took sick 
leave

% of total 
employees 

who took sick 
leave

Average days 
per employees

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) (06 employees) 40 06 100% 6,67

Skilled (levels 3-5) (18 employees) 133 18 100% 7.39

Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 
(26 employees)

224 26 100% 7,39

Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12) (51 
employees)

414 51 100% 8,12

Senior management (13-16) (21 employees) 136 21 100% 6,48

Total 947 122 100% 7,76

Table 4.2.8.2 – Annual leave, 01 January 2018 – 31 December 2018

Salary Band Total days taken Average days per 
employees

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) (06 employees) 119 19,83

Skilled (levels 3-5) (18 employees) 388 21,56

Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) (26 employees) 662 25,46

Highly skilled supervision (levels 9 12) (51 employees) 1384 27,14

Senior management (13-16) (21 employees) 774 36,86

Total 3327 27,27
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Table 4.2.8.3 – Capped leave, 01 January 2018 – 31 December 2018

Salary Band Total days of capped 
leave taken

Average number of 
days taken per 

employee

Average capped leave 
per employee as at 31 

December 2016

Lower skilled (levels 1-2) 0 0 0

Skilled (levels 3-5) 0 0 0

Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 0 0 0

Highly skilled supervision (levels 9 12) 0 0 0

Senior management (13-16) 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0

Leave payouts for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019:

No leave payouts were made during the period under review

Table 4.2.9.2-Details of Health Promotion and HIV and AIDS Programs (tick the applicable)

Question YES NO Details, if yes

Has the department designated a member of SMS 
to implement the provisions contained in Part VIE of 
Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulation, 2001? If 
so provide her/his name and position

√

Mr. Mahlatjie 
Director : HRD & ER 

Does the department have a dedicated unit or has 
it designated specific staff members to promote 
the health and well-being of your employees? If so, 
indicate the number of employees who are involved in.

√

M.V Raseona 
Assistant Director: Employee Health & Wellness

Has the department introduced an Employee 
Assistance or Health Promotion Programme for your 
employees? If so, indicate the key elements services 
of this programme.

√

Counselling Services are offered to staff members 
and the Sports Management programme has been 
implemented 

Has the department established (a) committee(s) 
as contemplated in IN PART VIE of Chapter 1 of the 
Public Service Regulations 2000? If so. Provide the 
names of committee members and stakeholders 
they represent.

√

Has the department reviewed its employment 
policies and practices to ensure that these do not 
unfairly discriminate against employees on the 
basis of their HIV status? If so, list the employment 
policies/ practices so reviewed

√

 

Has the department introduced measures to protect 
HIV-positive employees or those perceived to be HIV 
positive from discrimination? If so, list the elements 
of these measures.

√

Awareness campaigns for HIV management are held 
in the department. 
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Question YES NO Details, if yes

Does the department encourage its employees to 
undergo Voluntary counseling and testing, if so list 
the results that you have achieved

√
GEMS provide pre and post test counselling. 

Has the department developed measures/indicators 
to monitor and evaluate the impact of its health 
promotion programmers? If so, list these measure/
indicators.

√

 

4.2.10 LABOUR RELATIONS

Table 4.2.10.1- Collective agreements, 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

Total Collective agreements 

N/A

Table 4.2.10.2 - Misconduct and Disciplinary cases finalized, 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number % of total

Unauthorised absenteeism and failure to take reasonable instructions 4 67%

Total (cases reported) 6 100%

Table 4.2.10.3- Misconduct addressed in disciplinary hearings, 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

Type of Misconduct Number % of total

Unauthorised Absenteeism 6 100%

Total 6 100%

Table 4.2.10.4. Grievances lodged for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

 Grievances Number % of Total

Number of grievances resolved  0 0%

Number of grievances not resolved 2 100%

Total number of grievances lodged 2 100%

Table 4.2.10.5- Disputes lodged in the councils 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

Disputes Number % of total

Number of disputes upheld 0 0%

Number of disputes dismissed 1 50%

Total number of disputes lodged 2 100%
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Table 4.2.10.6-Strike action for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

Total number of person working days lost N/A

Total cost(R000) of working days lost N/A

Amount (R000) recovered as a result of no work no pay N/A

Table 4.2.10.7- Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

Number of people suspended N/A 

Number of people whose suspensions exceeded 30 day N/A

Cost (R000) of suspensions N/A

4.2.11 SKILLS DEVELOPMENT

This section highlights the efforts of the department with regard to skills development

Table 4.2.11.1 – Training needs identified 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

Occupational  Categories Gender Number of 
employees 

as at 1st April 
2018

Training undertaken at start of reporting period

Learnerships Skills 
programmes 
& other short 

courses

Other forms 
of training

Total

Legislators, senior officials and 
Managers (11-15)

Female 30 0 8 8 16

Male 25 0 9 8 17

Professionals (8-10) Female 10 0 21 2 23

Male 29 0 8 5 13

Technicians and associate 
Professionals (7)

Female 7 0 1 1 2

Male 6 0 3 0 3

Clerks (4-6) Female 9 0 8 6 14

Male 12 0 4 3 7

Service and sales Workers (1-3) Female 7 2 16 0 18

Male 4 6 10 0 16

Skilled agriculture and fishery 
workers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related trades 
workers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine operators 
& assemblers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary occupations Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Subtotal Female 63 2 54 17 73

Male 76 6 34 16 56

Total   139 8 88 33 129
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Table 4.2.11.2 – Training provided 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

Occupational Categories Gender Number of 
employees 

as at 1st April 
2018

Training undertaken at start of reporting period

Learnerships Skills 
programmes 
& other short 

courses

Other forms 
of training

Total

Legislators, senior officials and 
Managers (11-15)

Female 30 0 8 8 16

Male 25 0 9 8 17

Professionals (8-10) Female 10 0 21 2 23

Male 29 0 8 5 13

Technicians and associate 
Professionals (7)

Female 7 0 1 1 2

Male 6 0 3 0 3

Clerks (4-6) Female 9 0 8 6 14

Male 12 0 4 3 7

Service and sales Workers(1-3) Female 7 2 16 0 18

Male 4 6 10 0 16

Skilled agriculture and fishery 
workers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related trades 
workers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine operators 
&assemblers

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary occupations Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Subtotal Female 63 2 54 17 73

Male 76 6 34 16 56

Total   139 8 88 33 129
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Part E
Financial Information 
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Civilian Secretariat for Police Service
Vote within Vote 23

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT for the year ended 31 March 2019

1. Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note on Transfers and Subsidies disclosure notes (Note 6) and Annexure 1 (A-

C) to the Annual Financial Statements.

2. Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after Virement): 

 2.1  Per programme Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

Variance  Variance as 
a % of Final 

Appropriation

R’000 R’000 R 000 %

Programme 1: Administration 54 437 53 072 1 365 2.5%

Programme 2: Intersectoral Coordination and 
Strategic Partnerships

24 345 21 976 2 369 9.7%

Programme 3: Legislation and Policy 
Development

21 392 20 386 1 006 4.7%

Programme 4: Civilian Oversight, Monitoring 
and Evaluations

31 045 28 430 2 615 8.4%

Total 131 219 123 864 7 355 5.6%

The underspending can mainly be attributed to vacant posts (Compensation of Employees), cost saving measures (Goods 
and Services) and a pro-rata Transfer payment made to SASSETA which was less than budget provided and deferred Purchase 
of Capital Assets due to the delay in the move to new offices.

2.2 Per economic classification Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

Variance Variance as a % 
of Final 

Appropriation

R’000 R’000 R’000 %

Current payments 129 365 122 758 6 607 5.1%

Compensation of employees 97 433 91 446 5 987 6.1%

Goods and services 31 932 31 312 620 1.9%

Transfers and subsidies 201 127 74 36.8%

Provinces and municipalities 6 6 - 0.0%

Departmental agencies and accounts 176 102 74 42.0%

Households 19 19 - 0.0%

Payments for capital assets 1 653 979 674 40.8%

Machinery and equipment 1 520 905 615 40.5%

Software and other intangible assets 133 74 59 44.4%

Payments for financial assets - - - -

TOTAL 131 219 123 864 7 355 5.6%

The underspending can mainly be attributed to vacant posts (Compensation of Employees), cost saving measures (Goods and 
Services) and a pro-rata Transfer payment made to SASSETA which was less than budget provided and deferred purchase of 
capital assets due to the delay in the move to new offices.
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Note 2018/19 2017/18

R’000 R’000

REVENUE
Annual appropriation 1 131 219 124 673

Statutory appropriation - -

Departmental revenue 2 196 126

NRF Receipts - -

Aid assistance - -

TOTAL REVENUE 131 415 124 799

EXPENDITURE
Current expenditure
Compensation of employees 3 91 446 82 685

Goods and services 4 31 312 31 446

Interest and rent on land 5 - 163

Aid assistance - -

Total current expenditure 122 758 114 294

Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies 6 127 946

Aid assistance - -

Total transfers and subsidies 127 946

Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible assets 7 905 2 401

Intangible assets 7 74 704

Total expenditure for capital assets 979 3 105

Unauthorised expenditure approved without funding - -

Payments for financial assets - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 123 864 118 345

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)  FOR THE YEAR 7 551 6 454

Reconciliation of Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year
Voted funds 7 355 6 328

Annual appropriation 7 355 6 328

Conditional grants - -

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts 13 196 126

Aid assistance - -

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 7 551 6 454

Civilian Secretariat for Police Service
Vote within Vote 23

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE for the year ended 31 March 2019
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Civilian Secretariat for Police Service
Vote within Vote 23

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION for the year ended 31 March 2019

Note 2018/19 2017/18

R’000 R’000

ASSETS  

Current assets 13 829 6 884
Unauthorised expenditure 8 5 696 5 696

Cash and cash equivalents 9 8 063 -

Other financial assets - -

Prepayments and advances 10 26 960

Receivables 11 44 228

Loans - -

Aid assistance prepayments - -

Aid assistance receivable - -

  

Non-current assets 82 73
Investments - -

Receivables 11 82 73

Loans - -

Other financial assets - -

  

TOTAL ASSETS 13 911 6 957

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities 13 911 6 929
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 12 13 683 6 328

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the 
Revenue Fund - -

Bank overdraft 14 - 551

Payables 15 228 50

Aid assistance repayable - -

Aid assistance unutilised - -

  

Non-current liabilities
Payables - -

  

TOTAL LIABILITIES 13 911 6 929

NET ASSETS - 28
Represented by:

Capitalisation reserve - -

Recoverable revenue - 28

Retained funds - -

Revaluation reserves - -

TOTAL - 28
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Note 2018/19 2017/18

R’000 R’000

Capitalisation Reserves
Opening balance - -

Transfers:

Movement in Equity - -

Movement in Operational Funds - -

Other movements - -

Closing balance - -

Recoverable revenue
Opening balance 28 -

Transfers: (28) 28

Irrecoverable amounts written off - -

Debts revised - -

Debts recovered (included in departmental receipts) (28) (7)

Debts raised - 35

Closing balance - 28

Retained funds
Opening balance - -

Transfer from voted funds to be surrendered (Parliament/Legislatures ONLY) - -

Utilised during the year - -

Other transfers - -

Closing balance - -

Revaluation Reserve
Opening balance - -

Revaluation adjustment (Housing departments) - -

Transfers - -

Other - -

Closing balance - -

TOTAL - 28

Civilian Secretariat for Police Service
Vote within Vote 23

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS for the year ended 31 March 2019
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Civilian Secretariat for Police Service
Vote within Vote 23

CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31 March 2019

Note 2018/19 2017/18

R’000 R’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts 131 415 124 799

Annual appropriated funds received 1.1 131 219 124 673

Statutory appropriated funds received - -

Departmental revenue received 2 196 126

Interest received - -

NRF Receipts - -

Aid assistance received - -

Net (increase)/decrease in working capital 1 287 709

Surrendered to Revenue Fund (196) (11 289)

Surrendered to RDP Fund/Donor - -

Current payments (122 758) (114 131)

Interest paid - (163)

Payments for financial assets - -

Transfers and subsidies paid (127) (946)

Net cash flow available from operating activities 16 9 621 (1 021)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Distribution/dividend received - -

Payments for capital assets 7 (979) (3 105)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets - -

(Increase)/decrease in loans - -

(Increase)/decrease in investments - -

(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets - -

Net cash flows from investing activities (979) (3 105)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/(decrease) in net assets (28) 28

Increase/(decrease) in non-current payables - -

Net cash flows from financing activities (28) 28

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8 614 (4 098)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period (551) 3 547

Unrealised gains and losses within cash and cash equivalents
- -

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 9 8 063 (551)
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PART A: ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Summary of significant accounting policies
 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies which have been applied consistently 

in all material aspects unless otherwise indicated. Management has concluded that the financial statements present fairly the 

department’s primary and secondary information.  

The historical cost convention has been used except where otherwise indicated.  Management has used assessments and estimates 

in preparing the annual financial statements.  These are based on the best information available at the time of preparation.

Where appropriate and meaningful additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the financial 

statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) Act 1 of 1999 (as 

amended by Act 29 of 1999) and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA and the annual Division of Revenue Act. 

1. Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash Standard.  

2. Going concern 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

3. Presentation currency

Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the functional currency of the 

department. 

4. Rounding 

Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand (R’000).

5. Foreign currency translation

Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into South African Rand using the spot exchange rates 

prevailing at the date of payment / receipt.

6. Comparative information

6.1 Prior period comparative information 

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial statements.  Where necessary figures 

included in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to ensure that the format in which the information is 

presented is consistent with the format of the current year’s financial statements.

Civilian Secretariat for Police Service
Vote within Vote 23

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 March 2019
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Civilian Secretariat for Police Service
Vote within Vote 23

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 March 2019

6.2 Current year comparison with budget 

A comparison between the approved final budget and actual amounts for each programme and economic classification is 

included in the appropriation statement.  

7. Revenue

7.1 Appropriated funds

Appropriated funds comprises of departmental allocations as well as direct charges against the revenue fund (i.e. statutory 

appropriation).

Appropriated funds are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the appropriation becomes effective.  

Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments budget process are recognised in the statement of financial performance on 

the date the adjustments become effective.

The net amount of any appropriated funds due to / from the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a 

payable / receivable in the statement of financial position.

7.2 Departmental revenue 

Departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received and is subsequently paid into 

the relevant revenue fund unless stated otherwise.

Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a payable in the statement of financial 

position. 

7.3 Accrued departmental revenue 

Accruals in respect of departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in the notes to the financial statements 

when:

· it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the department; 

and

· the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.

Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable from collecting agents.

Write-offs are made according to the department’s debt write-off policy.
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8. Expenditure

8.1 Compensation of employees

8.1.1 Salaries and wages

Salaries and wages are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.  

8.1.2 Social contributions

Social contributions made by the department in respect of current employees are recognised in the statement of financial 

performance on the date of payment.  

Social contributions made by the department in respect of ex-employees are classified as transfers to households in the 

statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

8.2 Other expenditure

Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments for capital assets) is recognised in 

the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.  The expense is classified as a capital expense if the total 

consideration paid is more than the capitalisation threshold.  

8.3 Accruals and payables not recognised 

Accruals and payables not recognised are recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost at the reporting date.

8.4 Leases

8.4.1 Operating leases

Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current expenditure in the statement of 

financial performance on the date of payment.

The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements. 

8.4.2 Finance leases 

Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital expenditure in the statement of financial 

performance on the date of payment.

The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements and are not apportioned between the 

capital and interest portions.  

Civilian Secretariat for Police Service
Vote within Vote 23

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 March 2019
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Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured at the lower of:

· cost  being the fair value of the asset; or

· the sum of the minimum lease payments made  including any payments made to acquire ownership at the end of the 

lease term  excluding interest.

9. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement of financial position.  

Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of financial position as a current liability.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, deposits held, other short-

term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

10. Prepayments and advances

Prepayments and advances are recognised in the statement of financial position when the department receives or disburses 

the cash.  

Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost.

Prepayments are expensed on a monthly basis after the service was received.

11. Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost plus accrued interest where interest is 

charged less amounts already settled or written-off.  Write-offs are made according to the department’s write-off policy.

12. Financial assets

12.1 Financial assets (not covered elsewhere)

A financial asset is recognised initially at its cost, plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue 

of the financial asset.

At the reporting date a department shall measure its financial assets at cost less amounts already settled or written-off except 

for recognised loans and receivables which are measured at cost plus accrued interest where interest is charged less amounts 

already settled or written-off.

12.2 Impairment of financial assets

Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial asset an estimation of the reduction in the recorded carrying value to 

reflect the best estimate of the amount of the future economic benefits expected to be received from that asset is recorded in 

the notes to the financial statements.

Civilian Secretariat for Police Service
Vote within Vote 23

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 March 2019
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13. Payables

Payables recognised in the statement of financial position are recognised at cost.

14. Capital Assets

14.1 Immovable capital assets

Immovable assets reflected in the asset register of the department are recorded in the notes to the financial statements at 

cost or fair value where the cost cannot be determined reliably. Immovable assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction are 

recorded at fair value at the date of acquisition.  Immovable assets are subsequently carried in the asset register at cost and are 

not currently subject to depreciation or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for use.

Additional information on immovable assets not reflected in the assets register is provided in the notes to financial statements.

14.2 Movable capital assets

Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost.  Movable capital assets acquired 

through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.  

Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined reliably the movable capital assets are measured at fair value 

and where fair value cannot be determined; the movable assets are measured at R1.  

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at R1.

Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for use.

14.3 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost.  Intangible assets acquired through a 

non-exchange transaction are measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.  

Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the department commences 

the development phase of the project.  

Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined reliably the intangible capital assets are measured at fair value and 

where fair value cannot be determined; the intangible assets are measured at R1.  

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at R1.

Civilian Secretariat for Police Service
Vote within Vote 23

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 March 2019
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Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready for use. 

15. Provisions and Contingents

15.1 Provisions

Provisions are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a present legal or constructive obligation to 

forfeit economic benefits as a result of events in the past and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 

benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. The 

provision is measured as the best estimate of the funds required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

15.2 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation that arises from 

past events  and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 

events not within the control of the department or when there is a present obligation that is not recognised because it is 

not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be 

measured reliably.

15.3 Contingent assets

Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when a possible asset arises from past events and 

whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within 

the control of the department.

15.4 Commitments 

Commitments (other than for transfers and subsidies) are recorded at cost in the notes to the financial statements when there 

is a contractual arrangement or an approval by management in a manner that raises a valid expectation that the department 

will discharge its responsibilities thereby incurring future expenditure that will result in the outflow of cash. 

16. Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the statement of financial position until such time as the expenditure is either:

· approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature with funding and the related funds are received; or

· approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature without funding and is written off against the appropriation in the 

statement of financial performance; or

· transferred to receivables for recovery.

Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised expenditure.

Civilian Secretariat for Police Service
Vote within Vote 23

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 March 2019
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17. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed.  The amount recorded 

is equal to the total value of the fruitless and or wasteful expenditure incurred.  

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is removed from the notes to the financial statements when it is resolved or transferred to 

receivables for recovery.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable and are de-

recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

18. Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed.  The amount recorded is equal 

to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is impracticable to determine in which case reasons therefor are 

provided in the note.  

Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the relevant authority transferred to receivables 

for recovery or not condoned and is not recoverable.   

Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable and are de-recognised when 

settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

19. Changes in accounting policies,  accounting estimates and errors

Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have been applied retrospectively in accordance with MCS 

requirements except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of 

the change in policy.  In such instances the department shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets 

for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with MCS requirements.

Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in accordance with MCS requirements 

except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the error.  In 

such cases the department shall restate the opening balances of assets liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which 

retrospective restatement is practicable.

20. Events after the reporting date

Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been accounted for in the financial statements.  The 

events after the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting events after the reporting date have been disclosed in the 

notes to the financial statements.  

Civilian Secretariat for Police Service
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21. Departures from the MCS requirements

Management has concluded that the financial statements present fairly the department’s primary and secondary information; 

The department complied with the Standard and has not departed from a particular requirement to achieve fair presentation.

22. Recoverable revenue

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous financial year becomes recoverable from 

a debtor in the current financial year.  Amounts are either transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund when recovered 

or are transferred to the statement of financial performance when written-off.

23. Related party transactions

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources services or obligations between the reporting entity and a related party. 

Related party transactions within the Minister/MEC’s portfolio are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the 

transaction is not at arm’s length. 

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning directing and controlling 

the activities of the department. The number of individuals and their full compensation is recorded in the notes to the financial 

statements.

24. Employee benefits

The value of each major class of employee benefit obligation (accruals, payables not recognised and provisions) is disclosed in 

the Employee benefits note.

Civilian Secretariat for Police Service
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